FILED 045
JUN 20 1997

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

			CLERK, SUPREME COURT
ALBERT LEE MAYS,)		Chief Deputy Chief
Petitioner, vs.)))	DCA CASE NO. 96-1621 SUP. CT. CASE NO.	90,826
STATE OF FLORIDA,)	Ser. er. eribb ivo.	,
Respondent.)		

PETITIONER'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JAMES B. GIBSON PUBLIC DEFENDER SEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT

REBECCA M. BECKER
ASSISTANT PUBLIC DEFENDER
FLORIDA BAR NO. 0259918
112 Orange Ave., Ste. A
Daytona Beach, FL 32114
(904) 252-3367

ATTORNEY FOR PETITIONER

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Petitioner was convicted of aggravated assault, a third degree felony. Pursuant to the sentencing guidelines, Petitioner's recommended sentencing range was 50.85 months to 84.75 months in prison. Petitioner was adjudicated guilty and sentenced to 70 months in prison.

On appeal to the Fifth District Court of Appeal, Petitioner argued that the sentence was illegal inasmuch as it exceeded the statutory maximum. The issue on appeal was the interpretation of the 1995 amendment to the sentencing guidelines codified in Rule 3.703(d)(26), Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure which permits sentence in excess of the statutory maximum. Petitioner contended that if the statutory maximum is within the recommended range, the amendment does not apply. The District Court disagreed and held that if any portion of the recommended range exceeds the statutory maximum, the trial court is not bound by the general sentencing statutes. Mays v. State, 1997 WL 125895 (Fla. 5th DCA 1997). The Court further expressly aligned itself with the Third District Court of Appeal in

Martinez v. State, 22 Fla.L.Weekly D305 (Fla. 3d DCA January 29, 1997) opinion on rehearing 22 Fla. L. Weekly D1009 (Fla. 3d DCA April 23, 1997). Petitioner timely sought rehearing which was denied on May 9, 1997. A timely notice to invoke this Court's discretionary jurisdiction was filed on June 9, 1997.

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The decision of the fifth District Court of Appeal <u>sub judice</u> specifically concurred with a decision of the Third District Court of Appeal, citing <u>Martinez v. State</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D305 (Fla. 3d DCA January 29, 1997) <u>opinion on rehearing</u>, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D1009 (Fla. 3d DCA April 23, 1997), which is currently pending review before this Court in Case No. 90,679. Pursuant to <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981) and <u>Savoie v. State</u>, 422 So.2d 308 (Fla. 1982), this Court has the discretion to accept the instant case for review.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT HAS JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE INSTANT CASE IN WHICH THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL SPECIFICALLY CITED CONCURRENCE WITH A DECISION FROM THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL WHICH IS CURRENTLY PENDING REVIEW BEFORE THIS COURT.

Acknowledging that the issue before them was the "hot issue" of the day, the Fifth District Court of Appeal affirmed Petitioner's sentence which exceeded the statutory maximum for the third degree felony, aggravated assault, of which Petitioner was convicted. At issue was the interpretation of Rule 3.703(d)(26), Florida Rules of Criminal Procedure which provides:

If the recommended sentence under the sentencing guidelines exceeds the maximum sentence authorized for the pending felony offenses, the guidelines sentence must be imposed, absent a departure. Such downward departure must be equal to or less than the maximum sentence authorized by Section 775.082.

Petitioner's recommended sentencing range was 50.85 to 84.75 months; he received a sentence of 70 months. The Court below held that as long as a portion of the recommended range exceeds the statutory maximum, a sentencing judge is not bound by the limitation imposed by the general sentencing statute. The Court specifically concurred with a case from the Third District, Martinez v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D305 (Fla. 3d DCA January 29, 1997) opinion on rehearing, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D1009 (Fla. 3d DCA April 23, 1997), wherein the Court rejected the same argument made by Petitioner herein.

In Martinez, supra, the Court also rejected an issue involving the scoring of victim

injury points and certified direct conflict with a decision of the Second District Court of Appeal. A petition for review of Martinez was filed in this Court and is currently pending in Case No. 90,679. Although Martinez did not invoke jurisdiction on the same issue as in the instant case, once this Court accepts jurisdiction over a cause to resolve a legal issue in conflict, in its discretion the Court can consider other issues properly raised and argued.

Savioe v. State, 422 So.2d 308 (Fla. 1982). Since the issue subjudice will be argued in Martinez, this Court has discretionary review to accept this case pursuant to Jollie v. State, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981) to ensure uniformity of decisions.

Petitioner further directs this Court's attention to the fact that this issue is also pending review before this Court in Green v. State, Case No. 90,696.

CONCLUSION

For the above-stated reasons and authority, this Honorable Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the case <u>sub judice</u> based upon the reasoning of <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981).