ORIGINAL



IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

JUR 20 1397

ALBERT LEE MAYS,

Petitioner,

v.

CASE NO. 90,826 5DCA CASE NO. 96-1621

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Respondent.

ON DISCRETIONARY REVIEW FROM THE FIFTH DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

ROBIN A. COMPTON ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL Fla. Bar #846864 444 Seabreeze Boulevard 5th Floor Daytona Beach, FL 32118 (904) 238-4990

COUNSEL FOR RESPONDENT

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The decision in this case does not expressly or directly conflict with any other decision and so this Court should not exercise jurisdiction in this case.

ARGUMENT

THIS COURT HAS NO JURISDICTION TO REVIEW THE DECISION IN THIS CASE WHICH CONCURS WITH A CASE CURRENTLY PENDING REVIEW IN THIS COURT ON AN ENTIRELY SEPARATE ISSUE.

Petitioner's recommended sentencing range was 50.85 to 84.75 He received a sentence of 70 months which was within 25% months. of his recommended sentence of 67.8 months. On appeal he argued that where the recommended range encompassed the statutory maximum, the sentencing court was limited to imposing the statutory maximum. The Fifth District Court of Appeal held that as long as a portion of the recommended range exceeds the statutory maximum, a sentencing judge is not bound by the limitation imposed by the general sentencing statute concurring with Martinez v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D305 (Fla. 3d DCA January 29, 1997). Mays v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D734 (Fla. 5th DCA March 21, 1997). In Martinez, the Third District certified conflict with Thornton v. State, 683 So. 2d 515 (Fla. 2d DCA 1996) on an issue involving the scoring of victim injury points. Rehearing was denied in Martinez v. State, 22 Fla. L. Weekly D1009 (Fla. 3d DCA April 23, 1997).

Petitioner asserts that this court has jurisdiction pursuant to <u>Jollie v. State</u>, 405 So. 2d 418 (Fla. 1981) and <u>Savoie v. State</u>, 422 So. 2d 308 (Fla. 1982). Respondents disagree. A district

2

court of appeal per curiam opinion which cites as controlling authority a decision that is either pending review in or has been reversed by this Court continues to constitute prima facie express conflict and allows the Supreme Court to exercise its jurisdiction. Jollie, supra. However, the Third District in Martinez, supra, certified conflict on an entirely separate issue unrelated to the instant case. The Martinez court certified conflict on an issue involving the scoring of victim injury points.

Petitioner further contends that once this Court accepts jurisdiction over a cause to resolve a legal issue in conflict, in its discretion it can consider other issues properly raised and argued pursuant to <u>Savoie</u>, <u>supra</u>. This Court stated in <u>Savoie</u>:

> We have addressed this issue because, once we accept jurisdiction over a cause in order to resolve a legal issue in conflict, we may, in our discretion, consider other issues properly raised and argued before this Court.

<u>Savoie</u> at 310. In the instant case, we have no way of predicting whether this Court will address or even whether the instant issue will be raised in <u>Martinez</u>. To assume that it will be and to then base conflict jurisdiction upon that is too speculative and presumptuous. Jurisdiction depends upon whether the conflict between decisions is express and direct and not whether the conflict is inherent or implied. <u>Dept. of HRS v. National Adoption</u>

3

Counseling Service, Inc., 498 So. 2d 888 (Fla. 1986).

There is no conflict with any other court or with this Court in order to exercise jurisdiction pursuant to Article V, Section 3(b)(3) of the Florida Constitution and Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv). Every appellate court to consider this issue has ruled the same way. <u>Martinez</u>, <u>supra</u>; <u>Nantz v</u>. <u>State</u>, 687 So. 2d 845 (Fla. 2d DCA 1996). This Court should not accept jurisdiction in this case.

CONCLUSION

Based on the arguments and authorities presented herein, the State respectfully requests this honorable Court to decline to accept jurisdiction in this case.